UNITED STATES o
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENGY:: 371 1]

" BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATOR ~

In the Matter of: )
S _ , )
HUNTE KENNEL SYSTEMS AND ). Docket No. FIFRA-07-2009-0003
ANIMAL CARE, INC. ) :
| )
Respendent )}

COMPLAINANT’S PREHEARING EXCHANGE

The United States Environmental Protection Agency, Regién VII (“EPA” or
“Coxnpiainani”) respectfully submits the following Prehearing Exchange pursuant to the
May 19, 2009 Prehearing Order issued by the Presiding Officer, Chief Administrative -

Law Judge Susan L. Biro.

I EX?ECTED‘WITI\%ESSES
- L M@ﬂ: Ms. Haff is a Compliance Review Qfﬁpér with the Toxics and
Pesticides Branch, Water, Wetlands, and Pesticides Division, EPA,ARegion VII. Her
_duties inclﬁdé, inter alia, review and assessment of inspections COl’ldI;iCted pursuant to the
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (“FIFRA”). She has begn‘ with EPA
for 28 years and has been in her current position for over two years. Ms. Haff will testify
as an expert witness as to her review of the evidence compiled as a result of the October
2006 i_nspectioﬂ of Hunte Kennel Systéms and Animal Care, Inc.’s (“Respondent™)
facilities by the Missouri Department of Agriculture and EPA’s regulatory ovérsight of
Respondent’s facilities. Based on this evidence, Ms. Haff will testify to the factual basis

for her determination that Respondent is in violation of FIFRA and the regulations



promulgate.d thereﬁnder. Sﬁe will also teétify regarding how the penalty proposed in the
referenced .Compiaint was calculated applying the statutory penalty factors set forth
within the FIFRA Enforcement Response Policy (“ERP”). She will offer her opinion
regarding the appropriateness of the penalty proposed in the Complaint, considéring the
potential for harm to human health and the environment due to Respondent’s violations,
the size of Respondent’s business“, and Respondeﬁt’s 'culpability and history of
noncompliaricé Ms. Haff may teétify further as to the requirements to bzl"ing the facility
into compiianée with FIFRA regulations.

2 Richard Gebken: Mr. Gebken is a Product Manager in the Insecticide

Branch in the Office of Pesticide Prograln‘s Registration Division. Mr. Geﬁken has been
a Product Manager for approximately five years. Mr. Gebken’s respoﬁsibilities include,
inter alia, performing all fegulatory activities for specific insecticidal products associated
with assigned chemicals, which includes the rev.iew of new chemicals, new uses of
existing chemicals, label amendments, and special local needs and ré;registration ,
eligi‘bility décisions. ﬁn addition, Mr. Gebkeﬁ is responsible for the review and resdlaﬁon
of risk management issues involving pyrethroid compounds, insect repellents, some
growth regulators, and other specific insecticides. ﬁe also evaluates and interprets
reports, policies, and outreach initiatives that require response to inquiries. from private
citizens, trade assoéiations, press, and local and foreign governments. Mr. Gebken will
testify as an expert witness as to the registration status and Cancellation Order of |
products containing Phosmét, as well as the human health risks posed as a result of

exposure to Phosmet. -



3. Yvonne Barr: Ms. Barris a Pésﬁcide Use Investigator with the Bureau of
Pesticide Control, Missouri Department of Agriculture (“MDA™). Hér duties include,
inter alia, the investigation of pesticide producers, dealers and applicators with respect 0
compliaﬂcé with state and federal pesticide regulations. She has been with MDA for over.
five years. Ms. Barr receivéd her Masters degree in Plant P;tthology from the University
of Arkansas in 1985. She has cé-authored three published articles about plant pathology .
: apd is licensed as a private and public pesticide applicator. Ms. Barr will testify as an
expert witness as to her observations and findings during het inspections of Respondent’s
facilities on October 3, 17, and 23, 2006. |

11. POCUMENTS AND EXHIBITS

Copies of documents and exhibits that Complainaﬁt intends to introduce into
evidence ét the hearing are nuiﬁbered and attached hereto as Compiéinant’s Exhibits, and
are numﬁer sequentially with the prefix “CX”:

CX 1: Ms. Joy Haff’s résumé, pursuant to Parégraph 1.A. of the _Prehéaring
Order. | | | .

CX 2: Mr. Richard Gebkeﬁ’s résumeé, pursuant to Paragfaph 1.A. of the
Prehearing Order. |

(CX 3: Ms. Yvonne Barr’s résumé, pursuant to Par’agraﬁh l’l.A. of the Prehearing
Order. | |

CX 4: EPA’s FIFRA ERP, dated July 2, 1990, pursuant to Pérégraphs 1.B. and

2.F. of the Prehearing Order.



CX 5 EPA’s “FIFRA Civil Penalty Calculation Worksheet” for Hunte Kennel
Systems, prepared by Joy Haff, dated November 11, 2008, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B.
and.2.G. of the Prehearing Order. | |

CX 6: EPA’s Invitation for Pre-filing Negotiations letter to Mr. Paul
Bartholomew, Manager, Hunte Kennel Systems, dated May 21, 2008, pursuant to

‘Paragraph 1.B. of the Prehearing Order. |

CX 7. EPA’s Complaint and Notice of bpportunity for Hearing, dated March 20,
2009, pursuant to Paragraph 1.B. of the Prehearmg Order.. |

CX38: 8 EPA’s Enforcement Case Revrew (“ECR”) Request Response No FYQ09-
VII-001, dated February 23, 2009, prepared by Richard Gebken, pursuant to Paragraph
1.B. of the Prehearing Order.
| CX 9: EPA’s regrstratlon for the pesticide given EPA Registration No. 2724-262,
sold as “Prolate/Lintox-HD Insecticidal Spray and Backrubber for Livestock,” pursuant
to Paragraphs 1.B. and 2.A. of the Prehearing Order.

CX 10; Label for “Prolate/Lintox-HD Insecticidal Spray_ and Backrubber for

~ Livestock,” as accepted by EPA on April 16, 2002, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B. and 2.A.
of the Prehearing Order. |

CX 11: EPA’s registration for the pesticide given EPA Registration No. _2724—
169, sold as “Vet-Kem Kemolate Emulsifiable Liquid” and “Paramite,” pursuant to .' -
Paragraphs 1.B., 2.B., and 2.E. of the Prehearing _Order.

CX12: Label for “Vet-Kem Kemolate Emulsifiable Liquid,” (also sold under
distributor product name “Pararnite”} aé accepted by EPA on March 31, 1998, pursuant 1o

Paragraphs 1.B., 2.B., and 2.E. of the Prehearing Order.



CX 13: EPA’s Cancellation Order for “Vet-Kem Kemolate Emulsifiable Liquid,”
69 Fed. Reg. 207, 62666-62678 (Oct. 27, 2004), pﬁrsuant to Paragraphs 1.B., .2.'13., and
2.E. of the Prehearing Order. | |

CX14: 40 CF.R. § 152.132, titled ‘.‘Supplementai distributibn,” p_'ursuant to
Paragraph 2.C. of the Prehearing Order.’

CX 15; EPA’S_“Distrib‘utbr Information” for EPA Registraﬁon No. 2724-262,
showing all distributors and distributor product names aiaproved by EPA to distribﬁte this
product, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B. and 2C of the Prehearing Order.

| (X 16: EPA’s “Distributor Information” for EPA Registration No. 2724-169,
showing all distributors and distributor product pames apbroved by EPA to distribute this
product, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B. and 2.C. of the Prehearing Order.

CX 17 Missouri Marketplace Investigaﬁon Repﬁrt Narrative,
MKT100306MO0602, with atta‘chinents, for a FIFRA compliance inspection conducted
-at Respondent”’s facility located at 1323 South Ash, Buffalo, M';ssduri, on October 3,
2066; and Respondent’s facility loca;ced at 121 North Royhill Blvd., Goodman, Misspuri,
on October 17 and 23, 2006 by Yvonne Barr, pursuant to Paragréphs 1.B.,2.C.,2.D., and
2.E. of the Prehear"mg Order. |

_C_ZQ_S_ Missouri Department pf Agricnlture, Diviston of Plant Industries, Bureau
of Pééticide Control’s “Noticé of Inspection/Inspection Report” for Respondent’s Buffalo
facility, dated October 3, 2006, pursuant to Parégraphs 1.B., 2.D., and 2.E. of the
Prehearing Order.

CX 19: Miésouri Department of Agriculture, Division of Plant Industries, Bureau

of Pesticide Control’s “Notice of Inspection/lnspeétion Report” for Respondent’s



Goodman facﬂity, dated October 17, 2006, pursuant to‘Paragraphs 1.B., 'ZAD., and 2.E. of
the Prehearing Order. |

M lMiss_ouri Departiment of Agriculture, Division of Plant Indusiries, Bureau -
of Pesticide Control’s “Notice of Inspection/inspection Report” for Respondent’s
Goodman facility, dated October 23, 2006, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B., 2.D., and 2.E. of
the Prehearing Order. |

CX21: Miésouri Department of Agriculture, Division of Plant Industries, Bureau
of Pesticide Control’s “Inspection Report” for Respondént’s Buffalo facility, dated
- QOctober 3, 2006, pu;’sﬁant to Paragraphs l;B., 2.§., and 2.E. of the Prehearing ()rdf:r.

Q(___Z}_ Missouri Department of Agriculture, Division of Plant Industries, Bureau
of Pesticide Control’s “Inspection Report” for Respondent’s Goodmén fécility, dated
October 17 and 23, 2006, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B., 2.D;,<and 2.E. of the Prehearing
Order. | | |

| CX 23; Missouri Department of Agricuiture,. Division of Plant Industries, Bureau

6f Pestjcide Confrol’s “Collection Report” for Investigation No. MKT100'306M0.06{)2,
dated Octobcr. 24, 2006, pursuant to Pa.régraphs 1.B.,2.D., and 2.E. of the Prehearing
Order. |

CX 24:. Missouri Dépaﬂment of Agriculturé, Division of Plant Indﬁ'stries; Bureau
of Pesticide Control’s “History of Official Sample (Chain of Custody)” for Sample Nos.
MEKT100306MO0602-02, -03, -04, and -05, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B., 2.D., and 2.E.
of the Preheariﬁg Order.

CX25: Missouri Department of Agriculmre; Division of Plant Industries, Bureau

of Pesticide Control’s Stop Sale, Use, or Removal Order for Prolate/Lintox-HD



Insecticidal S;.;)rlay and Backrubber for Livestock for Respoﬁdent’s Buffﬁio' facilﬂy, dated
October 3, 2006, pursuant o Paragraphs 1.B., 2.D., and 2.E. of the ?rehéaiing Order.

CX 26: Missouri Department of Agriculture, Division of Plant Industries, Bureau
of ‘Pestic‘ide Control’s Stop Sale, Use, or Removal Ordér for Paramite for Respondent’s
Buffalo facility, dated October 3, 2006, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B., 2.D., and 2.E. of the
Preheaﬁﬂg Order. |

CX 27: Missouri Department of Agricultufe., Di\iisior;. of Plant Industries, Bureau
of Pesticide Control’s Stop Sale, Use, or Removal Order for Péramite for Respoﬁdent’s
Goodman facility, dated October 23, 2006, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B., 2.D., and 2.E. of
the Prehearing Order. |

CX 28 Missouri Department of Agricuiturc,‘Division of Plant Industries, Bureau
of Pesticide Control’s Stop Sale, Use, or Removal Order for Prolate/Lintox—HD for
| Respondent’s Goodman facility, dated Octbber 23, 2006, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B.,
2.D., and 2.E. of {he Prehearing Order. |

CX 29: Compact disc of phoﬁographs taken during th¢ October 3, 1'7, and 23,

12006 inspections at each of Respondent’s facilities, with correspl()nd‘i_ng Digital
Photograph Description Sheet, pursuant 1o ?magraphs 1.B.,‘2.D~., and 2.E of the
Prehearing Order. |

| CX 30: Missourl Depqrtment of Agriculture.; Division of Plant Industries, Bureau
of Pesticide Control’s “Invéstigaticn Statement” of Pam Walz, St_ore Manager for
Respondent’s Buffallo facility, dated October 3, 2006, -ptir‘suant‘to Paragraphs 1.B., 2.D.,

and 2.E. of the Prehearing Order.



CX 31: Missouri Department of Agricﬁulture, Division of Plant Industries, Bureau
‘ of Pesticide Control’s “Investigatlon Statement” of Paul Bartholomew, Manager for
Respondent’s Buffalo and Goodman faczhtles, dated October 17 2006, pursuant to
Paragraphs 1.B.,2.C., 2.D., and_ 2.E. of the Prehearing Order.

_C_)_(_Qg_ Missouri Départment of Agricultufe, Division of Plant Industries, Bureau
of Pesticide Control’s “Investigation Statement” of Paul Bartholomew, Manager for
Respondent’s Buffalo and Gobdman facilities, dated October 23, 2066, pursuant to
lParagraphs. 1.B.,2.D., and 2.F. of the Prehearing Order.

CX 33; Missouri Department of Agriculture', Division of Plant Industries, Bureau
of Pesticide Contrd’s Sample N03 MKT100306M00602-02, acopyofa _Paramite Dip
label provided by Respondent with sales of Paramite, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B., 2.D.-,
and 2.E. of the ?rehearing Oxder. |

CX 34: Missouri Department of Agrlculture Dmsmn of Plant Industries, Bureau
of Pesticide Control’s Sample No. MKT100306MO0602-03, a copy of an emaﬁ from
Elaine Kroll, an employee of Respondent’s, to Pam Walz, Store Manager for
Responc_lent’s Buffalo facility, transmitting the label Respopdent put on Paramite Dip
bottles, pursuant to Paragraphs_ 1.B., 2.D., and 2.E. of the Prehearing Ordef.

CX 35: Missouri Department of Agriculture, Division of Plant Industries, Bureau
of Pesticide' Control’s Sample No. MKT100306M00602-04, Respondent’s Invoices for
_the purchase of Prolate/Lintox from Direct Pét Superstore, orders 4947849-1 and
5103174-1, pursuant to Paragraphs' 1.B., 2.D., and 2.E. of the Prehéaring Order.

CX 36: Missduri Depariment of Agriculture, Division of Plant Industries, Bureau

of Pesticide Control’s Sample No. MKT100306M00602-05, Respondent’s ledger of



Pal;amite Dip sales, spanning January 6,‘ 2006 to October 8, 2006, pursuant to Paragraphé
1.B.,2.D.,and 2.E. of ilﬁe Prehearing Order.

CX 37: A computer screen capture of Respondent’s website on April 15, 2008,
showing Paramite Dip offered for sale, pursuant to Paragraphs 1.B., 2.D., aﬁd 2.E. _of the

Prehearing Order.

IIL. JUDICIAL NOTICE OF DOCUMENTS
Complainant hereby lrequests the Presiding Officer to take judicial notice of the
) following: |

1. The Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, an& Rodenticide Act, 72 United States
Code (“U.S.C.”) Section 136 et. seq., and the gavérning regulations promulgated
thereunder, |

2. The Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative
Assessment of Penai‘ues 40 Code of Federal Regulations (“C.F.R.”) Part 22.

IV. DETERMINATION OF THE PROPOSED PENALTY AMOUNT

Pursuant to ‘Paragraph 2.G. of the Prehearing Order, follows is a narrative
statement explaining the calculation of the proposed penalty;

Section I4(a)(1) of FIFRA provades for the assessment of a civil penaity of not

more than $6, 500 for each violation agamst any pes’uclde “dealer, retailer or other

distributor” who yioiates any provisions of said Act for vioiations occurring after Mai'ch
15, 2004. The Civil Mohetary Penalties Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.F.R. Part 19,
has allowed civil nionetary penaitie‘s"under FIFRA to be inéreased by ten percent (10%)
for all violations which take place after J anuary 30, 1997. In determining the amount of

 the civil penalty, Section 14(a)(4) of FIFRA requires the Agency to consider the



‘appropnateness of such penalty to the size of the busmess of the person charged, the
effect on the person’s ability to continue in business, and the gravity of the v101at10n

The FIFRA ERDP is designed to provide fair and equitable treatment of the
regulated community by ensuring that similar enforcement responses and comparable
penalty assessments will be made for pomparaﬁle violations. -Furthermore, the policy
aims to éerve as a deterrent from futurélviolatio.ns of FIFRA. The ERP states that a civil
?enalty is the preferred enforcement remedy for most violations. A civil penalty is
- appropriate where the violation (1) presents an actual or pdtenﬁai. risk of harm to humans
or fche environment; (2) was apparently committed as a result of ordinary negli gence (as
opposed to criminal negligence), inadvertence, or mistake; and .(3) the violation involves -
a violation under the Act by any regi#trant, p;odu_cer, commercial applicator, “for hire”
apiaiicator, wholesaler, dealer, retailer, or other distributor (no prior warning is required
by FIFRA for violatoré in this category).

The ERP states that the determination of the ﬁenalty amount is made according to a
five stage process in consideration of the FIFRA Selzotion 14(&)(4) criteria. These steps
are:

1. Determination (l)f the gravity or “level” of the violation using Appendix A of the .

ERP. |

2. Determination of the siz;: of business category for the violatof, found in Table 2

of the ERP |

3. Use of the FIFRA civil penalty matrices found in Table 1 of the ERP to

determine the dollar amount associated with the gravity level of the violation and

the size of business category of the violator.

10



4, Further gravity adjustments of the base penalty in COnsideration of the specific
characteristics of the pesticide involved, the actual or potential harm to human
health and/or the environment, the compliance history of the violator, and the
culpability of the violator, using‘ the “Gfavity Adjustment Criteria” found in
Appendix B of the ERP. |

5. Consideration of the effect that payment of the total civil penalty will have on the

violator’s ability to continue in business.

1. Gravity Level

T’he gravity of the violation and the size of the business are considered in the
FIFRA Civil Penalty Matﬁces shown in Table 1 of the ERP. Each cell of the matrix
represents the Agency s assessment of the appropriate civil penalty, within the statutory .

maximum, for each gravity level of a violation and for each size of business category.

2. Size of Business

In order to prévide equitable penalties, the civil penalties generally decrease as
the size of the business decreases, and vice versa. Size of business is determined from a
cofnpany’s Zross revenues‘ from all sources during the pfior calendar yéar. If the revenue
data for the previous year appears to be unrepresentative of the-genéral performance of -
the business, an average of the gross revenues for the three.previous years may be used.
Further, the sizé of business and gross revénue figures are based on the entire corporation
rather than a specific subsidiary or division of the company which is involved with the
violation. According to the 2005 Dun & Bradstreet Report and Reference USA -

Information, Respondent’s annual sales were reported to be between $5,000,000 and

1



$9,999,999. According to the ERP, the Respondent’s size of business places Respondent

in Category 1.

3. Determination of Dollar Amount Associated with Gravity Level and Size of Business
Coﬁnts 1and?2

Statutory Violation Respondent violated Section 12(a)(1)A) of FIFRA, 7 US.C. §

136j(a)(1)(A), and Section 12(a)(1)(E) of FIFRA, 7 Us.c § 1§6j(a)(1)(E), by offering
for sale or distribution an unregistered and misbranded pesticide from both of

Respondent’s facilities. .

Tevel of Violation - Level 2 (From ERP ~ Offered for sale or distribution a pesticide not
registered under Section 3 or was canceled or suspended, which was not authorized by
the Administrator, and which was adulterated or misbranded with multiple misbranding

violations).

Violator Category - Sectién 14(a)(1) - Respondent is a dealer of pesticides.

Size of Business- Ca’ze_gory I- (Company gross revenues are Business Category 1).
Base Penalty - $6,500 (based on abéve priteria, the Civil Penalty Matrix and the Civil
Monetary Inflation Adjustment Rﬁle.) |

Counts 3 through 7

Statutory Violation — Respondent violated Section 12(a)(1)(A) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §
136j(a)(1)A), and Section 12(a)(1)(E) of FIFRA, 7U.S.C. § 136j(a)(1)(E), by selling or
distributing an unregistered and misbranded pesticide from both of Respondent’s

facilities.

Level of Violation - Level 2 (From ERP — Sold or distributed a pesticide not registered

under Section 3 or was canceled or suspended, which was not authorized by the

12



Administrator, and which was adulterated or misbranded with multiple misbranding
violations).

Violator Category - Section 14(a)(1) - Respondent is a dealer of pesticides.

Size of Businesé - Category I - (Company gross revenues are Business Category 1). R

Base Penalty - $6,500 (based on above criteria, the Civil Penalty Matrix and the Civil
Monetary Inflation Adjustment Rule). |

Counts 8 and 9

Statutory Violation — Respondent violated Secﬁon 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §

136(a)(2)(L), by producing a pesticide in both of Respondent’s facilities.

Level of Violation ~ Level 2 (From ERP — Produced a pesticide or active ingredient

_ subject to the Act in an unregistered establishment).

VYiolator Category - Section 14(a)(1) - Respondent is a dealer of pesticides.

Size of Business - Category 1 - (Company gross revenues are Business Category .
Base Penalty - $6,500 (based on above criteria, the Civil Penalty Matrix and the Civil
Monetary Inflation Adjustment Rule).

4. Gravity Adjustments (For all counts)

Pesticide Toxicity - Value is 2. The product sold as Paramite contained Prolate/Lintox-

HD, EPA Reg. No. 2724-262. This pesticide was registered as Category 1 with the signal
Word. “Danger,” indicating that it is associated with chroﬁic health effects.

Harm to Humap Health - Value is 3. For the product sold as Paramite, containing
Prolate/Lintox-HD wﬁh active ingredien‘-t Phosmet, there is a potential for serious or
widespread harm to human health. (Reference: Inferim_ Rer‘egistratipn Eiigibﬂity :

Decision (IRED) for Phosmet, dated October 31, 2001, and Federal Register Notice OPP-

13



2002-0354; FRL-7287-1, dated March 19, 2003, which announced the voluntary
cancellation of products containing Phosmet for use on domestic pets to eliminate

Phosmet exposure in residential settings and to reduce risks to CORnSuUmers).

Fnvironmental Harm - Value is 1. The potential for or any actual harm for serious or
widespread harm to the environment is minor.

Violative History - Value is 0. Respondent has no prior FIFRA violations.

Cﬁlp_ability - Value is 2. Violation resulted from negligence.

5. Ability to Continue in Business/Ability to Pay

Section 1'4(a)(4) of FIFRA requires the Agency 10 consider the effect of the

" penalty on Respondent’s ability to continue in business when determining the amount of
the civil penalty. The ERP states that it can be assumed that the Requndent has the
ability to pay at the time the complaint is issued il information concerning the alleged
violator’s ability to pay is not readily available. The Requndent has been notified in the
civil complaint of its right under thé statute to have its ability to continue in business |
considered in the i.s.;suélof ability to pay/abiiity to continue in business in its answer to the
civil complaint, or during the co;irse of settlement negotiations. On .Ju‘ne 4, 2009, counsel
- for Respondent indicated that Respondent may make an inability to pay claim. However,
to date, EPA has not received financial doc‘uments‘ from Respondent to substantiate such
a claim. ' |

Sumimary

The base pénaity for the administrative Complaint is $6,500 per count and the total
gravity points add up to eight. Following thé Gra_vity Adj ustment Criteria in the ERP, a

value of eight results in no adjustment to the base penalty. With a total of nine counts,

14



Respondent was assessed a proposed pené}ty of $58,500 in the Administrative Civil

Complaint.

V. APPLICATION OF THE PAPERWORK REDUCTION ACT OF 1980

Pursuant to ParagraphIZ.H. of the Prehearing Order, the Présiding Officer
requested Complainant’s position regarding the applicability of the Paperwork Reduction
Act (“PRA™), 44 U.S.C. § 3501 et. seq., to this proceeding, including whether there is a
current Ofﬁée of Management and Budge't. (“OMB”) control number invoi*&ed and
whether the provisions of Section 3512 of the PRA may apply to this CaSé.

Complainant states that.there are no PRA r.equirements for Counté 1 ’ehrough_ 9,
which include the following violations: offering fof sale a misbranded and unregistered
pesticide; sale of a misbranded and unregiétered product; and production of a pesticide in
an unregistered establishment. Section 12(a) of FIFRA establishes the “ﬁnlawful acts”
pursuant to FIFRA, including thé above referénced violations. Complainant asserts that
the- PRA does not apply to such statutory requirements and, therefore, is inapplicable to
Counts 1 through 9 identified in the Compia.int. In the alternative, Corﬁplainant states
that if the PRA were adjudged to apply to Counts 1 through 9, there are valid OMB
control numbers‘ assigned to FIFRA regulations with respect to the fggistering, Ealsleiing, :

and production of pesticides.

V1. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS
Complainant respectfully reserves the right to call all witnesses called by the
Reépondent; to recall any of its witnesses in rebuttal; anci fo modify or supplement the
" pames of witnesses and exhibits prior to the Adjudicatory Hearing, pﬁrsuant to 40 CIEFR.

Part 22, and upon adequate notice to the Respondent and the Presiding Officer.

15



VH. LOCATION AND LENGTH OF HEARING

.Pursuant to Paragraph 1.C. of the Prehearing Order, Complainant requests the
hearing in this matter be held in or near Kansas City, Kansas. In the alternative,
Complainant would nét c;bj ect to conducting the heéring at a suitable locati.on in the
county where Respondent resides or conducts the business which tlhe hearing conecerns. -

Complainant anticipates needing approximately eight (‘8) hours to present its

direct case.

Respectfully submitted,

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

Chris Muehlberger
Assistant Region Counsel _
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region VII
901 North 5™ Street
Kansas City, Kansas 66101
- (913) 551-7623

ATTORNEY FOR COMPLAINANT
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1 heréby certify that on the 30 day of June, 2009, I filed the Original of this

Prehearing Exchange and its attachments with the Regional Hearing Clerk, EPA Region

VII, 901 North 5" Street, Kansas City, Kansas 66101, and mailed a copy by certified mail

to the following:

The Hon. Susan L. Biro

Chief Administrative Law Judge

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Office of the Administrative Law Judges

" Mail Code 1900L

1200 Pennsylvania Avenue NW
Washington, D.C. 20460

John E. Pierce, Esq. _

Carnahan Evans Cantwell & Brown, PC
2805 S. Ingram Mill Road

P.O. Box 10009 -

Springfield, MO 65808

S Mg, e
Chris Muehlberger
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